

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH

Docket No. 20-2601-01

PUBLIC HEARING

August 03, 2020

ADVANCED REPORTING SOLUTIONS

801-746-5080 | office@advancedrep.com | advancedrep.com

SALT LAKE | 159 West Broadway, Broadway Lofts, Suite 100 | Salt Lake City, Utah 84101

PROVO | 3507 North University Avenue, Suite 350-D | Provo, Utah 84604

ST. GEORGE | 20 North Main Street, Suite 301 | St. George, Utah 84770



BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH

In the Matter of the)	Docket No.
Petition of Sage Telecom)	20-2601-01
Communications, LLC, dba)	
TruConnect to Amend its)	HEARING
Designation as an Eligible)	
Telecommunications Carrier)	
in the State of Utah to)	
Participate in the Utah)	
Universal Service Fund)	

August 3, 2020
1:03 p.m.

Taken Via Telephonic Conference

Reporter: Teri Hansen Cronenwett
Certified Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter

A P P E A R A N C E S

Presiding Officer:

Yvonne R. Hogle

For Sage Telecom dba TruConnect:

Lance J.M. Steinhart, P.C.
Attorneys at Law
1725 Windward Concourse, Suite 150
Alpharetta, GA 30005
(770) 232-9200 (Phone)
(770) 232-9208 (Fax)
lsteinhart@telecomcounsel.com

For the Division of Public Utilities:

Justin Jetter
Assistant Attorney General
160 E. 300 South, 5th Floor
P.O. Box 140857
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-0857
(801) 366-0335
jjetter@agutah.gov

For the Office of Consumer Services:

Robert Moore
Assistant Attorney General
160 East 300 South, 5th Floor
P.O. Box 140857
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-0857
(801) 366-0353
rmoore@agutah.gov

I N D E X

WITNESS	Page
NATHAN JOHNSON	
Direct Examination by Mr. Steinhart	7
CASEY J. COLEMAN	
Direct Examination by Mr. Jetter	9
ALEX WARE	
Direct Examination by Mr. Moore	12

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

1 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you,
2 Mr. Johnson. Can you spell your name for the reporter,
3 please.

4 MR. JOHNSON: Yes. N-A-T-H-A-N, last name
5 Johnson, J-O-H-N-S-O-N.

6 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Anybody else for the
7 applicant, with the applicant?

8 MR. STEINHART: No, thank you.

9 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.
10 Let's -- what about the division?

11 MR. JETTER: This is Justin Jetter with the
12 Utah Attorney General's Office representing the Utah
13 Division of Public Utilities. And I haven't heard him
14 join us yet, but the division intends to call Casey
15 Coleman as its witness today, if he joins us. If not, I
16 may need to, I guess, offer a statement on behalf of the
17 division.

18 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Anybody else
19 from the division? All right. For the office please.

20 MR. MOORE: Yes. This is Robert Moore of the
21 AG's office representing the Office of Consumer
22 Services. With me is the office utility analyst, Alex
23 Ware.

24 MR. WARE: I am here.

25 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Mr. Ware,

1 does the court reporter need Mr. Ware to spell his name?

2 THE REPORTER: Sure.

3 MR. WARE: A-L-E-X, W-A-R-E.

4 THE REPORTER: And could I get Mr. Casey
5 Coleman's spelling?

6 MR. JETTER: This is Justin Jetter. It
7 doesn't sound like Casey is on with us, but his name is
8 C-A-S-E-Y, C-O-L-E-M-A-N.

9 THE REPORTER: Thank you.

10 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Is Mr. Coleman on?
11 Okay. It doesn't sound like he is. Okay. Thank you
12 everybody. This case has been resolved through
13 stipulation. TruConnect, the Division of Public
14 Utilities and the Office of Consumer Services have
15 agreed on the petition, and we are here to give the
16 parties the opportunity to present the stipulation and
17 to support its position.

18 Mr. Steinhart, are you ready to put on your
19 witness?

20 MR. STEINHART: Yes, I am.

21 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Before you do --

22 MR. STEINHART: Good afternoon. Sorry.

23 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: I apologize.

24 MR. STEINHART: Yes.

25 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Go ahead.

1 MR. STEINHART: I was just going to call
2 Mr. Johnson. Do you want to swear him in or --

3 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Yes. Mr. Johnson --

4 MR. STEINHART: Let me start with him. Yeah.
5 Mr. Johnson, could you please state your name, title and
6 business address for the record please.

7 MR. JOHNSON: My name is Nathan Johnson,
8 chairman and co-CEO of TruConnect and Sage. Address is
9 1149 South Hill Street, Suite 400, L.A., California,
10 90015.

11 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Mr. Johnson,
12 do you swear to tell the truth?

13 THE WITNESS: Yes.

14 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Please
15 proceed, Mr. Steinhart. I apologize. I should have
16 done that from the very beginning. But please go ahead.

17 MR. STEINHART: No worries.

18 NATHAN JOHNSON,
19 was called as a witness, and having been first duly
20 sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

21 EXAMINATION

22 BY MR. STEINHART:

23 Q. Mr. Johnson, are you familiar with the
24 petition filed in this docket, 20-2601-01 for your
25 amendment to your ETC designation to participate in the

1 **Utah Universal Service Fund?**

2 A. Yes, I am.

3 **Q. And was it prepared by you or at your**
4 **direction, the petition?**

5 A. At my direction.

6 **Q. And are you also familiar with the stipulation**
7 **and settlement agreement that was executed in this**
8 **docket?**

9 A. Yes, I am.

10 **Q. And do you and the company support the**
11 **stipulation and settlement agreement and wish it to be**
12 **entered into the record in the final order?**

13 A. Yes, we do.

14 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Mr. Steinhart --

15 MR. STEINHART: Okay. I have no further -- I
16 have no further direct examination. I guess I would
17 make a motion to put the stipulation and settlement into
18 the final record, to be incorporated in the order.

19 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you. Do we
20 have any objections?

21 MR. JETTER: No objection from the division.

22 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.

23 MR. MOORE: This is Robert Moore. No
24 objections.

25 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

1 We will admit the stipulation into the record.

2 MR. STEINHART: Thank you.

3 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Mr. Johnson, do you
4 have a summary of public -- of your support for the
5 stipulation, or do you wish the stipulation to speak for
6 itself, or how do you want to proceed?

7 THE WITNESS: No. I wish the stipulation to
8 speak for itself, thank you.

9 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you. I
10 guess now we can see if the division's witness has
11 appeared. Mr. Ware, are you on?

12 MR. COLEMAN: This is Casey Coleman. I am
13 here. Sorry I was a detained, but I'm here.

14 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Mr. Coleman. Okay.
15 Thank you. Mr. Jetter, please proceed.

16 MR. JETTER: Okay. Thanks. I'd like you to
17 start by having Mr. Coleman sworn in.

18 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.
19 Mr. Coleman, do you swear to tell the truth?

20 THE WITNESS: Yes.

21 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

22 CASEY J. COLEMAN,
23 was called as a witness, and having been first duly
24 sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

25 EXAMINATION

1 BY MR. JETTER:

2 Q. Mr. Coleman, would you please state your name
3 and occupation for the record.

4 A. Yeah. My name is Casey J. Coleman, and I am a
5 utility technical consultant for the State of Utah in
6 the Division of Public Utilities.

7 Q. Thank you. And in the course of your
8 employment, have you had an opportunity to review the
9 petition that was filed in this case, or this docket,
10 excuse me, as well as the direct testimony of Nathan
11 Johnson for Sage Telecom? And in addition have you had
12 an opportunity to review the stipulated settlement
13 agreement?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And do you believe that the stipulated
16 settlement agreement is just and reasonable in result
17 and approval of that agreement by the Utah Public
18 Service Commission would be in the public interest?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. And are you aware of any opposition to
21 approval of this settlement agreement?

22 A. No, I am not.

23 Q. Thank you. Do you have anything else you
24 would like to add?

25 A. No.

1 **Q. Okay. Thank you.**

2 MR. JETTER: Those are all of the direct
3 questions I have for Mr. Coleman. He is available for
4 questions from cross-examination or questions from the
5 commission.

6 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Does anybody
7 have any questions? Mr. Steinhart, do you have any
8 questions for Mr. Coleman?

9 MR. STEINHART: No, I don't. Thank you.

10 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Mr. Moore, do
11 you have any questions for Mr. Coleman?

12 MR. MOORE: No questions, thank you.

13 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. And --

14 MR. JETTER: And that is all that the -- oh,
15 go ahead.

16 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Oh, I was just going
17 to ask Mr. Steinhart if he would like to move for the
18 direct testimony of Mr. Nathan Johnson filed April 30th,
19 2020, to be included in the record. I, I recall him
20 moving for the settlement stipulation to be entered into
21 the record, but I don't recall him entering the direct
22 testimony of Mr. Johnson into the record before we
23 proceed.

24 MR. STEINHART: Yes, your Honor. I would like
25 to so move to enter the direct testimony of Mr. Johnson

1 into the record. Thank you.

2 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.
3 Any objections?

4 MR. JETTER: No objection from the division.

5 MR. MOORE: Robert Moore, no objection from
6 the office.

7 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.
8 The direct testimony of Mr. Nathan Johnson has been
9 entered into the record. Mr. Moore, would you like to
10 put your witness on please.

11 MR. MOORE: Yes. The Office of Consumer
12 Services would like to call Alex Ware and have him be
13 sworn.

14 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Mr. Ware, do you
15 swear to tell the truth?

16 THE WITNESS: Yes, I do.

17 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Thank you.

18 ALEX WARE,
19 was called as a witness, and having been first duly
20 sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

21 EXAMINATION

22 BY MOORE:

23 **Q. Could you please state your name and how you**
24 **are employed for the record?**

25 A. Yes. My name is Alex Ware, and I am a utility

1 analyst with the Office of Consumer Services.

2 **Q. Mr. Ware, in your capacity as a utility**
3 **analyst, have you worked on Docket 20-2601-01, and are**
4 **you familiar with the record in this docket?**

5 A. Yes. I am familiar with the record, and I
6 worked on this docket as well as the -- my colleague who
7 is now retired, Cheryl Murray.

8 **Q. Have you read and did you participate in**
9 **negotiations in drafting the settlement stipulation that**
10 **is the subject of this hearing?**

11 A. Yes.

12 **Q. Is it the OCS's position that the subject**
13 **stipulation, taken as a whole, is just, reasonable in**
14 **result and in the public interest?**

15 A. Yes.

16 **Q. Have you prepared a summary of the OCS's**
17 **position on the settlement?**

18 A. Yes, I have.

19 **Q. Please proceed.**

20 A. Okay. Thank you. Again, my name is Alex
21 Ware. My address is 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City,
22 Utah. I am a utility analyst with the Office of
23 Consumer Services. On behalf of the office, I and my
24 now retired colleague, Cheryl Murray, have reviewed all
25 of the documents that have been filed in this case and

1 participated in discussions that led to the stipulation
2 that is before the commission today.

3 Sage Telecom's enhanced Utah Lifeline program
4 offering of 1,000 voice minutes, unlimited text messages
5 and 3 gigabits of mobile broadband exceeds the minimum
6 requirements from the wireless telecommunications
7 provider to receive Utah Universal Service Funds for the
8 Lifeline program.

9 The office believes that the stipulation
10 before the commission is just, reasonable in result and
11 in the public interest and recommends that the
12 commission approve it. That's the end of my statement.

13 MR. MOORE: Mr. Ware is now available for
14 cross-examination and questions from the hearing
15 officer.

16 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Mr. Jetter, does the
17 division have any questions for Mr. Ware?

18 MR. JETTER: The division has no questions for
19 Mr. Ware. Thank you.

20 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Mr. Steinhart?

21 MR. STEINHART: No. We, we have no questions.
22 Thank you.

23 MR. MOORE: This is Robert Moore. Again, the
24 office has nothing more.

25 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. I guess I

1 just have one question for Mr. Johnson. The stipulation
2 states that Tru-Connect will maintain a fact sheet with
3 Utah-specific information that will include information
4 about the services that they will receive, and I guess
5 my question is whether that fact sheet has been uploaded
6 or is available to the public as stated in that
7 subparagraph 7A.

8 MR. JOHNSON: (Inaudible.)

9 THE REPORTER: I'm sorry. I didn't hear the
10 answer.

11 (Talking at once.)

12 THE REPORTER: I'm sorry. Would you give the
13 answer again, Mr. Johnson.

14 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Mr. Johnson, can you
15 repeat?

16 MR. JOHNSON: Yes.

17 MR. STEINHART: He hasn't answered yet.

18 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Yes, it has been
19 uploaded. It is available for public viewing; is that
20 correct?

21 MR. JOHNSON: That is correct.

22 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.
23 Okay. I don't believe I have any additional questions.
24 Thank you everybody for your testimony and for your
25 support of the stipulation, and we will issue an order

1 soon. Okay?

2 MR. STEINHART: Great. Thank you very much.

3 PRESIDING OFFICER HOGLE: We are adjourned.

4 Thank you.

5 (The hearing concluded at 1:18 p.m.)

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C E R T I F I C A T E

STATE OF UTAH)
COUNTY OF SALT LAKE)

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing proceedings were taken before me, Teri Hansen Cronenwett, Certified Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of Utah.

That the proceedings were reported by me in Stenotype, and thereafter transcribed by computer under my supervision, and that a full, true, and correct transcription is set forth in the foregoing pages, numbered 4 through 16 inclusive.

I further certify that I am not of kin or otherwise associated with any of the parties to said cause of action, and that I am not interested in the event thereof.

WITNESS MY HAND and official seal at Salt Lake City, Utah, this 4th day of August, 2020.



Teri Hansen Cronenwett, CRR, RMR
License No. 91-109812-7801

My commission expires:
January 19, 2023

-	add 10:24	broadband 14:5
-o0o- 4:2	addition 10:11	business 4:10 7:6
1	additional 15:23	C
1,000 14:4	address 7:6,8 13:21	C-A-S-E-Y 6:8
1149 7:9	admit 9:1	C-O-L-E-M-A-N 6:8
160 13:21	afternoon 4:3,7 6:22	California 7:9
2	AG's 5:21	call 4:25 5:14 7:1 12:12
20-2601-01 7:24 13:3	agreed 6:15	called 7:19 9:23 12:19
2020 4:6 11:19	agreement 8:7,11 10:13, 16,17,21	capacity 13:2
3	ahead 4:14,19,22 6:25 7:16 11:15	Caregiver 4:11
3 14:5	Alex 5:22 12:12,18,25 13:20	case 6:12 10:9 13:25
300 13:21	Amend 4:10	Casey 5:14 6:4,7 9:12,22 10:4
30th 11:18	amendment 7:25	chairman 7:8
3rd 4:6	analyst 5:22 13:1,3,22	Cheryl 13:7,24
4	apologize 6:23 7:15	City 13:21
400 7:9	appearances 4:13	co-ceo 4:24 7:8
7	appeared 9:11	Coleman 5:15 6:10 9:12, 14,17,19,22 10:2,4 11:3, 8,11
7A 15:7	applicant 4:14 5:7	Coleman's 6:5
9	approval 10:17,21	colleague 13:6,24
90015 7:10	approve 14:12	commission 10:18 11:5 14:2,10,12
A	April 11:18	commission's 4:4
A-L-E-X 6:3	attorney 4:16 5:12	Communications 4:9,16
	August 4:6	company 8:10
	aware 10:20	consultant 10:5
	B	Consumer 5:21 6:14 12:11 13:1,23
	beginning 4:14 7:16	correct 15:20,21
	behalf 5:16 13:23	
	believes 14:9	

court 6:1	entering 11:21	9,14,18,21 11:6,10,13,16
cross-examination 11:4 14:14	examination 7:21 8:16 9:25 12:21	12:2,7,14,17 14:16,20,25 15:14,18,22
<hr/> D <hr/>	exceeds 14:5	Honor 11:24
date 4:8	excuse 10:10	<hr/> I <hr/>
designated 4:5	executed 8:7	Inaudible 15:8
designation 4:10 7:25	<hr/> F <hr/>	include 15:3
detained 9:13	fact 15:2,5	included 11:19
direct 8:16 10:10 11:2, 18,21,25 12:8	familiar 7:23 8:6 13:4,5	incorporated 8:18
direction 8:4,5	filed 7:24 10:9 11:18 13:25	information 15:3
discussions 14:1	final 8:12,18	intends 5:14
division 5:10,13,14,17, 19 6:13 8:21 10:6 12:4 14:17,18	Fund 4:12 8:1	interest 10:18 13:14 14:11
division's 9:10	Funds 14:7	introduce 4:19
docket 7:24 8:8 10:9 13:3,4,6	<hr/> G <hr/>	issue 15:25
documents 13:25	General's 5:12	<hr/> J <hr/>
drafting 13:9	gigabits 14:5	J-O-H-N-S-O-N 5:5
duly 7:19 9:23 12:19	give 6:15 15:12	Jetter 5:11 6:6 8:21 9:15, 16 10:1 11:2,14 12:4 14:16,18
<hr/> E <hr/>	Good 4:3 6:22	Johnson 4:22,23,24 5:2, 4,5 7:2,3,5,7,11,18,23 9:3 10:11 11:18,22,25 12:8 15:1,8,13,14,16,21
East 13:21	guess 5:16 8:16 9:10 14:25 15:4	join 5:14
Eligible 4:11	<hr/> H <hr/>	joins 5:15
employed 12:24	hear 15:9	Justin 5:11 6:6
employment 10:8	heard 5:13	<hr/> L <hr/>
end 14:12	hearing 4:5,8 13:10 14:14	L.A. 7:9
enhanced 14:3	Hill 7:9	Lake 13:21
enter 11:25	Hogle 4:3,4,18 5:1,6,9, 18,25 6:10,21,23,25 7:3, 11,14 8:14,19,22,25 9:3,	
entered 8:12 11:20 12:9		

Lance 4:15	offering 14:4	15:6,19
led 14:1	office 5:12,19,21,22 6:14 12:6,11 13:1,22,23 14:9, 24	put 6:18 8:17 12:10
Lifeline 14:3,8		
LLC 4:9	officer 4:3,5,18 5:1,6,9, 18,25 6:10,21,23,25 7:3, 11,14 8:14,19,22,25 9:3, 9,14,18,21 11:6,10,13,16 12:2,7,14,17 14:15,16, 20,25 15:14,18,22	
<hr/>		
M		Q
<hr/>		
maintain 15:2	opportunity 6:16 10:8,12	question 15:1,5
make 8:17	opposition 10:20	questions 11:3,4,7,8,11, 12 14:14,17,18,21 15:23
messages 14:4	order 8:12,18 15:25	<hr/>
minimum 14:5		R
minutes 14:4		<hr/>
mobile 14:5		read 13:8
Moore 5:20 8:23 11:10, 12 12:5,9,11,22 14:13,23	participate 4:12 7:25 13:8	ready 6:18
motion 8:17	participated 14:1	reasonable 10:16 13:13 14:10
move 11:17,25	parties 6:16	recall 11:19,21
moving 11:20	petition 4:9 6:15 7:24 8:4 10:9	receive 14:7 15:4
Murray 13:7,24	position 6:17 13:12,17	recommends 14:11
<hr/>	prepared 8:3 13:16	record 4:13 7:6 8:12,18 9:1 10:3 11:19,21,22 12:1,9,24 13:4,5
N	present 6:16	repeat 15:15
<hr/>	presiding 4:3,5,18 5:1,6, 9,18,25 6:10,21,23,25 7:3,11,14 8:14,19,22,25 9:3,9,14,18,21 11:6,10, 13,16 12:2,7,14,17 14:16,20,25 15:14,18,22	reporter 5:2 6:1,2,4,9 15:9,12
N-A-T-H-A-N 5:4		representing 5:12,21
Nathan 4:21,22,24 7:7,18 10:10 11:18 12:8	proceed 7:15 9:6,15 11:23 13:19	requirements 14:6
negotiations 13:9	program 14:3,8	resolved 6:12
<hr/>	provider 14:7	result 10:16 13:14 14:10
O	public 5:13 6:13 9:4 10:6,17,18 13:14 14:11	retired 13:7,24
<hr/>		review 10:8,12
objection 8:21 12:4,5		reviewed 13:24
objections 8:20,24 12:3		Robert 5:20 8:23 12:5 14:23
occupation 10:3		
OCS's 13:12,16		
offer 5:16		

<hr/> S <hr/>	subparagraph 15:7	uploaded 15:5,19
Sage 4:9 7:8 10:11 14:3	Suite 7:9	Utah 4:12 5:12 8:1 10:5, 17 13:22 14:3,7
Salt 13:21	summary 9:4 13:16	Utah-specific 15:3
Service 4:12 8:1 10:18 14:7	support 6:17 8:10 9:4 15:25	Utilities 5:13 6:14 10:6
services 5:22 6:14 12:12 13:1,23 15:4	swear 7:2,12 9:19 12:15	utility 5:22 10:5 12:25 13:2,22
set 4:8	sworn 7:20 9:17,24 12:13,20	<hr/> V <hr/>
settlement 8:7,11,17 10:12,16,21 11:20 13:9, 17	<hr/> T <hr/>	viewing 15:19
sheet 15:2,5	talking 4:20 15:11	voice 14:4
sound 6:7,11	technical 10:5	<hr/> W <hr/>
South 7:9 13:21	Telecom 4:9 10:11	W-A-R-E 6:3
speak 9:5,8	Telecom's 14:3	Ware 5:23,24,25 6:1,3 9:11 12:12,14,18,25 13:2,21 14:13,17,19
spell 5:2 6:1	telecommunications 4:11 14:6	wireless 14:6
spelling 6:5	testified 7:20 9:24 12:20	worked 13:3,6
start 7:4 9:17	testimony 10:10 11:18, 22,25 12:8 15:24	worries 7:17
state 4:11 7:5 10:2,5 12:23	text 14:4	<hr/> Y <hr/>
stated 15:6	time 4:8	Yvonne 4:4
statement 5:16 14:12	title 7:5	
states 15:2	today 4:5 5:15 14:2	
Steinhart 4:15,21 5:8 6:18,20,22,24 7:1,4,15, 17,22 8:14,15 9:2 11:7,9, 17,24 14:20,21 15:17	Tru-connect 4:16,24 15:2	
stipulated 10:12,15	Truconnect 4:10 6:13 7:8	
stipulation 6:13,16 8:6, 11,17 9:1,5,7 11:20 13:9, 13 14:1,9 15:1,25	truth 7:12,20 9:19,24 12:15,20	
Street 7:9	<hr/> U <hr/>	
subject 13:10,12	Universal 4:12 8:1 14:7	
	unlimited 14:4	